
 

 
 

  

  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 

Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 

SY2 6ND 
   

Date:   21 April 2022 
 

 

Committee:  
Pensions Board 

 
Date: Friday, 29 April 2022 

Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury,  

 Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  The Agenda is attached 

 
Members of the public will be able to access the live stream of the 

meeting by clicking on this link: 
 
https://shropshire.gov.uk/PensionsBoardMeeting29April2022 
 
If you wish to attend the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available 
for you. 

 
Tim Collard 

Assistant Director - Legal and Governance 
 

Members of Pensions Board 
 
Member Representatives 

John Hall (Chairman) 
Mike Morris 

Dave Wright 
 

Employer Representatives 
Liz Furey 

Clare Charlesworth-Jones 
Helen Woodvine 
 

Your Committee Officer is:  
Michelle Dulson  Committee Officer 

Tel:  01743 257719     Email:  michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

https://shropshire.gov.uk/PensionsBoardMeeting29April2022


 

 

AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

2  Declarations of Conflicts of Interest  

 
Members are reminded that they should declare any interests which may lead to 

conflicts of interest in the subject area or any specific agenda item of this 
meeting.  A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is 

likely to prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Pension 
Board. It does not include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of 
that person being a member of the LGPS. 

 
 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2022 are attached for 

confirmation. 
Contact:  Michelle Dulson (01743) 257719 

 
 

4  Public Question Time  

 
To receive any questions from the public, notice of which has been given in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this meeting is Monday 
25 April 2022. 
 

 
5  Administration and Regulatory Updates (Pages 7 - 18) 

 
Report attached. 
Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743) 252192 

 
 

6  TPR's Single Code of Practice  

 
 

7  LGPS Central Chairs' meeting  

 

A verbal update will be given by the Chairman. 
 
 

8  Pensions Committee Reports and Feedback  

 

For Board Members to raise any questions following the recent Pensions 
Committee meeting. 
 



 

 

Please click on the link below to access the reports considered by the Pensions 
Committee at its last meeting on 18 March 2022: 

 
Agenda for Pensions Committee on Friday, 18th March, 2022, 10.00 am — 

Shropshire Council 
 
 

9  Date of Next Meeting  

 

The next meeting of the Pensions Board will be held at 10.00am on the 8 July 
2022. 
 

 
10  Exclusion of Press and Public  

 
To RESOLVE that in accordance with the provision of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, Section 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive 

Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations and 
Paragraphs 3 of the Council’s Access to Information Rules, the public and press 

be excluded during consideration of the following items. 
 
 

11  Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 19 - 22) 

 

The Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on the 28 January 2022 are attached 
for confirmation. 
Contact Michelle Dulson (01743) 257719 

 
 

12  Cyber Security Update (Exempted by Category 3)  

 
Report to follow. 

Contact Ian Churms (01743) 281191 
 

 
 

13  Pensions Committee Reports and Feedback (Exempted by Category 3)  

 
For Board Members to raise any questions following the recent Pensions 

Committee meeting. 
 
Please click on the link below to access the reports considered by the Pensions 

Committee at its last meeting on 18 March 2022. 
 

Agenda for Pensions Committee on Friday, 18th March, 2022, 10.00 am — 
Shropshire Council 
 

 
 

 
 

http://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4325
http://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4325
http://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4325
http://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4325


 

 

14  Governance Update (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 23 - 56) 

 

Report attached. 
Contact: Rebecca Clough (01743) 254457 

 
 



 

 

 

 Committee and Date 

 
Pensions Board 

 
29 April 2022 

 

PENSIONS BOARD 
 
Minutes of the virtual meeting held on 28 January 2022 

10.00 am - 12.05 pm 
 

Responsible Officer:    Michelle Dulson 
Email:  michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257719 

 
Present  

Member Representatives 
John Hall (Chairman) 
Mike Morris 

Dave Wright 
 

Employer Representatives 
Liz Furey 

Clare Charlesworth-Jones 
Helen Woodvine 

 
 
 

36 Apologies  
 

No apologies were received. 
 

37 Declarations of Conflicts of Interest  
 

No conflicts of interest were declared. 
 
38 Minutes of the previous meeting  

 

RESOLVED: 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2021 be approved 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
39 Public Question Time  

 

A question had been submitted by Joanna Blackman, in relation to the 
Pensions Committee meeting of 17 January 2022.  The Head of Treasury 

and Pensions read out the question and the Executive Director of 
Resources (Section 151 Officer) read the response.   

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 28 January 2022 

 

 
 
Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743 257719 2 

 

A question had been submitted by Martin Oddsocks, also in relation to the 
Pensions Committee meeting of 17 January 2022.  The Head of Treasury 

and Pensions read out the question and the Executive Director of 
Resources (Section 151 Officer) read the response.   

A copy of the questions and responses provided are attached to the 
signed Minutes and available on this Board’s pages on the Council’s web 

site. 

 

40 Administration and Regulatory Updates  
 

The Board received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager – 

copy attached to the signed Minutes – which provided Members with the 
latest administration and regulatory updates affecting the Local 

Government Pensions Scheme. 

The Pensions Administration Manager drew attention to some changes to 

the regulations around transfers out, set out in paragraph 7 of the report. 
These changes gave administering authorities a few more tools and rights 

to stop a transfer if certain red flags have been raised regarding why the 
individual is transferring or that they’re being scammed.  She confirmed 
that the Council’s own in-house procedures have been changed and they 

were ensuring that the new red flags were being looked at and that there 
was documentation to prove this had been done. 

In response to a query, the Pensions Administration Manager confirmed 
that it was not a big problem in Shropshire as there had been robust 

systems in place for many years along with internal documentation which 
ensured they could prove that scam documentation had been sent, that 

the individual was fully aware of when and how they could take their 
benefits and if the transfer was over £30,000, that they had taken the 
right advice.  To date Shropshire had not had any appeals or anyone 

coming back saying they were unhappy with the transfers that had gone 
out. 

In response to a query, the Pensions Administration Manager agreed to let 
members know how many requests for transfers had been received over 

the last year.  She explained that although some members sought advice 
from a financial adviser, they did not see the advice given however they 

did ensure that the person giving the advice was registered to do so.   

In response to a further query, the Pensions Administration Manager 
explained that there was guidance on the Pensions and Lifetime Savings 

Association website and on the Pensions Regulator website tied in with the 
new legislation setting out what to look for.  This guidance was currently 

being looked at and pulled into the in-house documentation so that staff 
knew what to look for and included such things as was the person 

Page 2



Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 28 January 2022 

 

 
 
Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743 257719 3 

 

vulnerable, were they literate, did they understand what they were being 
told etc. Some things would be beyond what could be done in-house but 

processes would be in place to ensure a discussion has been had with the 
individual, that all of the documentation has been filled in by that 

individual and would work with the guidance as best they could.  The 
Pensions Administration Manager agreed to give an update of the changes 

being introduced and to share the documentation with Board Members at 
the next meeting. 

In response to a query in relation to uptake of My Pension Online, the 
Pensions Administration Manager reported that uptake was quite good 
against a lot of other suppliers, however, more could be done to 

encourage increased digital engagement.  The Communications and 
Governance Team Leader explained that conversations were being had 

with the LGA about best practice. 

The Pensions Administration Manager drew attention to paragraph 11 

which updated the Board as to what could be done to protect vulnerable 
members.  Primarily, what they could do was try to protect the people 

who were transferring out and also when their pensions were in payment.  
There was very little that could be done whilst they were st ill members of 
the scheme although it was hoped that their employers were doing all 

they could to look after them and they now had direct links to the first 
point of contact within Shropshire Council if we had any red flags and as a 

last point of contact, we could involve the police. 

The Pensions Administration Manager updated the Board in relation to the 

employers within the fund, including what and who could come into the 
fund eg scheme employers who have to offer membership to their 

employees, admission bodies, where Council’s, Academies etc outsource 
services and designating bodies eg Town and Parish Council’s, who could 
offer membership to their employees by designating eligibility to 

individuals or groups.   

The Pensions Administration Manager drew attention to the list of 

employers within the scheme, set out at Appendix A which showed that 
currently there were 208 employers in the fund, 146 of which were active 

employers who send information every month on their active members, 
and 62 employers with no active members.  Referring to Appendix B, this 

showed that the fund had increased from 56 in 1997 to 164 in 2017 and 
this had now increased to 208 four years later. 

A brief discussion ensued in relation to employers within the scheme and 

the amount of administration required for small and large employers.  In 
response to a query, it was confirmed that recruitment was on the risk 

register and was being looked by the management team. 

 

Page 3



Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 28 January 2022 

 

 
 
Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743 257719 4 

 

In response to a query, it was confirmed that Shropshire did not have 
many ‘gone away’ pensioners and that payments were not made if the 

pensioner could not be found.  A monthly mortality tracing service was 
now used whereby records of deceased pensioners were provided every 

month which has significantly reduced overpayments for deaths.  It was 
agreed for an update of numbers deferred/gone away members be 

provided at the next meeting. 

 RESOLVED: 

 That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
41 Date of Next Meeting / Future Meetings  

 

The next meeting of the Pensions Board would be held on the 29 April 

2022 at 10.00am.   

Future meeting dates were agreed as follows: 

8 July 2022 

14 October 2022 

27 January 2023 

28 April 2023 

 

42 Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

 RESOLVED: 

That in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 and paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules, the public and press be excluded during 

consideration of the following items as defined by the categories specified 
against them. 

 

43 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)  
 

 RESOLVED: 

That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2021 be 

approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 

44 Pensions Committee Reports and Feedback (Exempted by 
Category 3)  

Page 4



Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 28 January 2022 

 

 
 
Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743 257719 5 

 

 

 The reports considered by the Pensions Committee at its meeting on 17 

January 2022 had been received by the Board.   

 

45 Governance Update including overview of recorded breaches and 
cyber security (Exempted by Category 3)  

 

 The Board received the report of the Communications and Governance 

Team Leader – copy attached to the signed Exempt Minutes – which 
provided an update on the Breaches of LGPS regulations recorded for the 
quarter 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021 affecting the Shropshire 

County Pension Fund.  Updates on all other governance issues were also 
included within the report. 

 RESOLVED: 

 That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
 

Signed  (Chairman) 

 

 
Date:  

  

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 Committee and date 
Pensions Board 
 

29 April 2022 
 

10.00am 

 Item 
 
Public 

Administration and regulatory updates  

Responsible Officer: Debbie Sharp 
Email: Debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk 
Tel: (01743) 252192 
 

1. Synopsis  

1.1. The report provides Pension Board members with the latest 
administration and regulatory updates affecting the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including updates on the 
McCloud remedy, Pension Dashboard and the Pension 
Regulator’s Single Code of Practice. 

2. Executive Summary 

2.1. This report includes specific updates on the fund’s latest work 

towards the McCloud remedy; the latest position on the 
national Pensions Dashboard consultation and issues identified 

by the fund.  
 

2.2. An update on the latest news on The Pensions Regulator’s 
single Code of Practice  
 

2.3. This report also provides an update on the annual projects 
currently underway within the administration team and the 

actions required.   

3.  Recommendations  

3.1. Pension Board members are asked to note the contents of this 
report with or without comment. 

REPORT 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

4.1. Risk Management  

By ensuring the guidance and legislation mentioned in this 
report is followed and adhered to, risks to the fund are 
minimised. A risk register is kept and updated in line with 

council corporate policy. 

4.2. Human Rights Act Appraisal 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk


 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

2 
 

The recommendations contained in this report are compatible 
with the Human Rights Act 1998. 

4.3. Environmental Appraisal 

There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 

consequence of this report. 

5. Financial Implications 

5.1. The Pensions Dashboard and the legislative changes required 
because of the McCloud remedy will both increase costs for the 

Fund.  The extent of these cost increases, direct and indirect, 
are unknown at present.  

6. Climate change appraisal  

6.1. Energy and fuel consumption: No effect  
Renewable energy generation: No effect  

Carbon offsetting or mitigation: No effect  
Climate Change adaptation: No effect 

7. Administration and regulatory update  

7.1. In addition to this report, the Pensions Board are advised to 
note the pensions administration reports submitted to the 
Pension Committee on 18 March 2022. 

7.2. On 22 March 2022, the Local Government Association (LGA) 
forwarded a letter to administering authorities from Teresa 
Clay, Head of Local Government Pensions at the Department of 

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC). The letter 
which can be found at Appendix A, sets out DLUHC’s 

recommendations on how administering authorities should take 
the McCloud remedy into account in the 2022 triennial 

valuation. During the 2019 valuation, the Fund’s scheme 
employers were given the option to include the potential costs 

for the McCloud remedy in their employer contribution, some 
employers took up this option. As the McCloud remedy position 
is slightly further on since the 2019 valuation, the fund’s 

calculation approach for member benefits for the 2022 
valuation will automatically include the assumptions listed in 

the letter from DLUHC and will apply in the calculation of 
employer contribution rates by the Fund’s Actuary.  

7.3. The Government tabled further amendments to the Public 
Service Pensions and Judicial Offices (PSPJO) Bill on 21 January 

2022. The main purpose of the Act is to give the relevant 
government departments the regulation powers to resolve the 
discrimination identified in the McCloud judgment. In summary, 

the amendments relevant to the administration the LGPS are:  

Page 8



 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

3 
 

• redefine “remediable service” so that it also potentially covers 
members who were not in pensionable service on 31 March 2012 in 

a relevant public service pension scheme but who were in such 
service before then  

• extend the types of schemes where pensionable service of which 
would not count as a disqualifying break  

• allow regulations to provide final salary benefits for transferred-in 
service from different public service schemes where the service 

benefitted from final salary protection in the other scheme  

• allow regulations to restrict service between 1 April 2014 (1 April 

2015 in Scotland) and 31 March 2022 from having final salary 
protection unless the member has transferred in or aggregated 
previous service  

• allow regulations to make provision adjusting pension credits and 
debits to reflect the McCloud remedy 

7.4. The Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices (PSPJO) Bill  
received Royal Assent on 10 March 2022. 

7.5. Robert Jenrick MP tabled an amendment to the Public Service 
Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill (PSPJO). The amendment was 

passed on 22 February 2022. The amendment will allow the 
responsible authority to issue guidance to administering 
authorities instructing them not to make investment decisions 

that conflict with the UK’s foreign and defence policy. The 
responsible authority for the LGPS in England and Wales is the 

Secretary of State. Further measures in this area will be 
introduced by the Boycotts, Divestment and Sanctions Bill 

which is expected during this Parliament. You can read more 
about the Boycotts, Divestment and Sanctions Bill and this 

amendment on the SAB’s website:  
https://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/bds-
main 

7.6. Members may wish to note there is nothing required from funds 
on this amendment at this point.  

7.7. Fund officers are currently busy on several annual projects.  
Including, the year-end data reconciliation with scheme 

employers, increasing deferred benefits and pension in 
payments in line with the 2022 Pensions Increase, applicable 

from 11 April, and producing end of year P60’s. Preparations 
are also underway to produce the 2021/22 annual report, the 
2022 Valuation data extract for the Fund Actuary and then the 

Annual Benefit statements for all active and deferred members. 

Page 9

https://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/bds-main
https://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/bds-main


 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

4 
 

7.8. A request was put forward for the number of scheme members 
on file without addresses. 10 pensioners and 561 deferred are 

recorded as gone away. There are 4 overseas deferred 
members overseas. The fund has had a mortality and tracing 

service in place for several years. A monthly mortality 
screening takes place on all pensioner records to try and ensure 

any deaths the fund has not been made aware of are picked up. 
Member tracing is used to locate scheme members approaching 

Normal Pension Age.  

 

8. Pensions Dashboard  

8.1. The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) published a 
consultation on the draft Pensions Dashboards Regulations on 

31 January 2022. The consultation ran for six weeks and closed 
13 March 2022.  

8.2. Pensions dashboards will allow individuals to see information 
about all their pensions, including the State Pension, in one 

place. These draft regulations set the requirements to deliver 
this and will place a legal duty on pension providers to provide 

information to the dashboards. 
 

8.3. The consultation proposed a staging deadline of the end of April 

2024 for public service pension schemes, including the LGPS. 
This means that LGPS administering authorities will need to be 

able to connect to the digital architecture by this date and be 
ready to provide individuals’ data to them via the dashboards. 

 
 There is concern on the ability of the Fund to meet the staging 

deadline given other pressures such as revisiting all calculations 
since 1 April 2014 due to the McCloud remedy. This will involve 
a significant amount of work including: 

 
 recalculating member and survivor pensions 

 
 paying arrears and interest 

 
 dealing with the resulting pension tax implications 

 
 recalculating deferred benefits and concurrent calculations  
 

 exchanging service information with other administering 
authorities for members who have transferred  

 
 potentially re-visiting past trivial commutation payments, 

CETVs, death grants and Club transfers 
 

Page 10



 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

5 
 

8.4. The Local Government Association (LGA) stated, in their 
response, which this fund supported, that for the above and 

additional following reasons they are doubtful a staging 
deadline of April 2024 is achievable: 

 
 The exclusion of deferred refunds from dashboards will 

make the system less effective at achieving the 
Government’s aim of reuniting people with lost pensions. 

 
 Although a longer period is allowed to respond to a request 

from a recent joiner, the rules do not appear to cater for 
the fact that administrators may not have been informed 
about the new joiner. 

 
 It is not clear what value data must be supplied in respect 

of a member who has not yet met the vesting period. 
 

 Some of the provisions in the draft regulations are very 
different from the rules that the LGPS must currently 

follow. Statements for deferred LGPS members are not 
covered by the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes 
(Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013.  

 
 Signpost data must be returned immediately after the 

scheme receives a view request. Signpost data includes ‘the 
scheme’s implementation statement’, a statement that 

LGPS administering authorities are not currently required to 
publish. The information contained in an implementation 

statement is likely to be replicated in an annual report. 
 
 The value data that must be returned will generally be 

included in a benefit statement for active members. It is 
not known whether any figures relating to the McCloud 

remedy will have to be included in annual benefit 
statements.  

 
8.5. The Money and Pensions Service (MaPS) will draft standards 

which it is expected to consult on later in 2022, to provide 
further detail on how schemes and dashboards providers must 
comply with their legislative duties. It is understood the MaPS 

standards will cover: 
 

 Data: data elements and formatting requirements that 
schemes must follow when returning data to members via 

dashboards 
 

 Technical: covering how dashboards must connect to MaPS 
and pension schemes 

Page 11



 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

6 
 

 
 Design: how view data must be presented on the 

dashboards 
 

 Reporting: what information schemes must keep and report 
to MaPS and regulators in relation to compliance and 

performance. 
 

8.6. Until more information is known, and the issues highlighted in 
the consultation response from the LGA are addressed, it is 

difficult to assess the full implementation and ongoing costs for 
the fund to set up, participate in and administer the Pensions 
Dashboard. Procurement of a supplier of the IT infrastructure 

required cannot be investigated until more detail is available. 
The people resource requirement to administer the data and 

deal with the queries is also unknown currently. Officers will be 
monitoring the development over the coming months.  

9. The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) Single Code of practice  

9.1. The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 introduced the framework 

for the governance and administration of public service pension 
schemes, such as the LGPS and provides an extended 
regulatory oversight by the regulator – it is covered in Code of 

Practice 14. The TPR's fifteen existing codes of practice’s are 
set to be moved into single online code, providing one up-to-

date and consistent source of information on pension scheme 
governance and management. 

9.2. A consultation on the Code was issued on 17 March 2021 and 
closed on the 26 May 2021: 

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-
library/consultations/new-code-of-practice 

 An interim response was issued by TPR in August 2021:  

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-
library/consultations/new-code-of-practice/interim-response-to-

consultation-on-tprs-new-code  

9.3. TPR is expected to lay the Code before Parliament in June/July 

2022 with the Code expected to be in force from October 2022. 
A key aim of the Code is for all schemes to be held to 

comparable standards (allowing for differences in legislation). It 
will apply to defined benefit and defined contribution schemes 
and across the private and public sectors. 

9.4. In appendix 1 of the consultation document a table was 
provided on the modules which may be ‘existing’, ‘new’ or ‘best 

Page 12

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice/interim-response-to-consultation-on-tprs-new-code
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice/interim-response-to-consultation-on-tprs-new-code
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice/interim-response-to-consultation-on-tprs-new-code


 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

7 
 

practice’ to each audience. Where a module is shown to contain 
‘existing’ content, updates may still mean that new 

expectations are presented within the module, or that they are 
presented in a different way. Some content marked as ‘new’ 

will be existing content that is new to that audience. Modules 
showing ‘best practice’ also do not apply to that audience, but 

consideration should be given to following them for best 
practice purposes.  

9.5. For the LGPS, there are twelve modules described as ‘new’, 
twenty ‘existing’ and four ‘best practice’  

9.6. Some of the ‘new’ modules listed for Public Sector schemes 
such as scams and cyber controls have pre-emptively been 
worked on by the Fund. An assessment will be required, of all 

the modules in the Code when it is published in its final version 
and comes into force to ensure the fund is compliant.   

10. McCloud update  

10.1. Heywood, the provider of the software used by the Fund to 

administer the LGPS, is updating the software for the McCloud 
remedy in 4 phases, due to the delay by DLUHC providing the 

amendments to the LGPS.     

10.2. Work has continued to progress on this project and the first 
developments for phase 1 have been made available in the 

recent software release.  

10.3. The costs relating to this project are in two parts. The first is a 

one-off cost for each phase of the development. The second is 
an increase in the annual support and maintenance fees 

required due to the increased complexity and the ongoing 
maintenance of the calculations. 

10.4. Approaches through the CLASS management team have been 
made to the LGA who are now speaking to DLUHC about 
whether there is any possibility that the development costs for 

McCloud remedy could be centrally funded, or whether there 
are any other avenues to investigate whereby the development 

costs could be recouped centrally rather than CLASS Group 
funded.  

10.5. The team are currently working with the Fund Actuary to 
ascertain which employers have not continued to do as required 

and provide hours changes and breaks in service since 01 April 
2014. 

 

Page 13



 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

8 
 

11. Communications  

11.1. The fund monitors member take-up of its online area member 
self-service (MSS), known by members as ‘My Pension Online’. 
The annual benefit statements for both active and deferred 

members are now available to view on ‘My Pension Online’ 
unless a member has requested a paper copy. As of 31 March 

2022, a total of 47% active members and 40% of deferred 
members and 41% of pensioners were registered to view their 

records on ‘My Pension Online’. Officers have recently been able 
to use an analytical tool to report on the usage of the 

functionality within ‘My Pension Online’. Aside from the login, 
registration and forgotten password/username pages the top 
five most visited pages are: 

1. Voluntary retirement benefit projector  

2. Early payment of deferred benefits projector  

3. Latest valuation – pensioner member 

4. Latest valuation –active member 

5. Annual benefit statements  

11.2. The Local Government Association’s Communications Working 

Group is currently drafting a digital engagement guide for LGPS 
funds. It is understood that a survey will be issued to all LGPS 
funds to capture member portal sign up rates and portal usage 

which officers will feed into. It is hoped national benchmarking 
figures will be available to report following this survey.   

11.3. In the January 2022, pension board members requested a 
communication to be sent to employers which covered how 

unpaid absences should be dealt with for LGPS members. An 
update was provided in the February 2022 email bulletin to all 

employers.   

11.4. The fund’s bi-annual pensioner newsletter InTouch is currently 
being prepared for distribution via email along with the 

notification that the P60 end of year certificates are available in 
‘My Pension Online’. Member’s who have requested a hard copy 

of the P60 document will also receive a hard copy of the 
newsletter.   

11.5. At the last pensions board meeting member’s requested an 
update on the number of members affected by the annual and 

lifetime allowance limits in the previous tax year. The fund 
issued Pension Savings Statements to 50 scheme members who 
exceeded the HMRC Annual Allowance limit for 2020/21 tax 

Page 14



 

Pensions Board; 29 April 2022: Administration and regulatory updates 

9 
 

year. The annual allowance limit is currently £40,000. The 
annual allowance is set by HMRC. It is the maximum a pension 

can increase by in a tax year before a tax charge is applied. The 
benefits held by the scheme member including any Additional 

Voluntary Contributions, are calculated for growth at the end of 
each year to work out pension input amount (PIA). This is then 

tested against the annual allowance for each tax year.  

11.6. Four scheme members were affected by the lifetime allowance 

tax limit in 2020/21. The lifetime allowance is a limit on how 
much pension can be built up over an individual’s lifetime 

before incurring a tax charge. The current limit £1,073,100.  

 

12. Update from Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)   

12.1. Pension Board members can read a detailed summary of the 
meeting on the Board updates page of the SAB website. The 

SAB board meetings page includes full details of the meeting 
and agenda papers. The latest news from the SAB can be found 

on their website https://www.lgpsboard.org  

 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, 
but does not include items containing exempt or confidential 
information) 
Pensions Committee Meeting 18 March 2022 Pensions Administration Report 
Pensions Board Meeting 28 January 2022 Administration and Regulatory 
updates 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
N/A 
Local Member 
N/A 
Appendices 
Appendix A – DHLUC 2022 valuation letter McCloud  

Page 15

https://www.lgpsboard.org/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

LGPS administering authorities 
Via LGA distribution list 

Local Government Finance Stewardship 
Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities 
4th Floor, Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London SW1P 4DF 
 
www.gov.uk/dluhc 

Email: lgpensions@levellingup.gov.uk 
 
 

March 2022 
 
Dear Colleagues 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) England and Wales - 2022 triennial 
valuations  
 
I am writing to set out DLUHC’s current position on McCloud remedy for administering 
authorities to consider whilst undertaking the 2022 valuations.   
 
In December 2018, the Court of Appeal found that the transitional protections introduced to the 
judicial and firefighters’ schemes during the reform of public service pensions in 2015 
discriminated on grounds of age. On 15 July 2019 the UK Government issued a written 
ministerial statement to confirm that as transitional protection was provided in all public service 
schemes, the ruling (generally referred to as the McCloud judgment) had implications for all 
those schemes, including the LGPS in England and Wales.  
 
Whilst proposals to address the specific discrimination in the LGPS have been set out in a 
written ministerial statement on 13 May 2021 here, changes have not yet been made to 
regulations. The amending regulations are expected to be made later this year.  We are aware 
that a lack of clarity may lead to differences in approach between funds and, all other things 
being equal, could possibly result in differences in employer contribution rates.  We are keen to 
avoid this where possible.  
 
We therefore suggest that all administering authorities, for the purposes of the 2022 triennial 
valuation, should value members’ benefits as required by the various Regulations in force as at 
31 March 2022 except for the following assumptions:  
 

• It should be assumed that the current underpin (which only applies to those members within 10 

years of their NPA at 31 March 2012) will be revised and apply to all members who were active in 

the scheme on or before 31 March 2012 and who join the post 1 April 2014 scheme without a 

disqualifying service gap. 

• The period of protection will apply from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2022 but will cease when a 

member leaves active service or reaches their final salary scheme normal retirement age 

(whichever is sooner). 

• Where a member remains in active service beyond 31 March 2022 the comparison of their 

benefits will be based on their final salary when they leave the LGPS or when they reach their 

final salary scheme normal retirement age (again whichever is sooner). 

• Underpin protection will apply to qualifying members who leave active membership of the LGPS 

with an immediate or deferred entitlement to a pension. 

Page 17

http://www.gov.uk/dluhc
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-05-13/hcws26


2 

• The underpin will consider when members take their benefit so they can be assured they are 

getting the higher benefit. 

DLUHC expects that all administering authorities will reflect the above amendments when 
valuing past service liabilities and setting employer contribution rates at the 2022 triennial 
valuation and that they will confirm their approach in the Funding Strategy Statement.  It is likely 
that the Government Actuary’s Department will also seek to ensure that this is the case when 
carrying out their Report under Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.  
DLUHC emphasise that this letter does not preclude final regulations taking a different approach 
to McCloud remedy to that outlined here. Therefore, administering authorities should make 
provision in their funding strategy for revisiting employer contributions if the actual outcome is 
materially different from that outlined above.  
 

Yours faithfully 
  

 
 
 

Teresa Clay 
Head of Local Government Pensions 

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Administration and Regulatory Updates
	2022.04.29 Administration and regulatory update Appendix A DLUHC 2022 valuation letter McCloud

	11 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)
	14 Governance Update (Exempted by Category 3)
	2022.04.29 Governance report EXEMPT Appendix A Recorded breaches 1 October to 31 December 2021
	2022.04.29 Governance report EXEMPT Appendix B Risk register
	2022.04.29 Governance report EXEMPT Appendix C Good Governance Interim Assessment - LGPS Central Funds
	2022.04.29 Governance report EXEMPT Appendix D Cyber Assurance action plan
	2022.04.29 Governance report EXEMPT Appendix E Transfer information


